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From: Glover, R. Mark [mailto:mglover@bakerdonelson.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 28, 2019 9:48 AM
To: Edward L. Stanton III; Will Perry
Cc: McMullen, Bruce; Tullis, Mary Wu; Jill Silk; Saleem, Zayid-mem
Subject: Request For Monitor Approval or Advice
 
 
Ed,
 
Please treat this request as containing sensitive security information so that if it is to be submitted to
the Court it will be done under circumstances which will allow the Court to determine whether to
file it under seal as has been done with earlier and similar requests of this type.
 
While I have not yet obtained and reviewed the Court transcript from our in-chambers conference
with His Honor, it is my understanding that for the purpose of the September 9-11 event, involving
the convergence in Memphis of high level law enforcement officials from throughout the United
States for a symposium, MPD is not prohibited from receiving intelligence from U. S. Secret Service,
FBI or other federal law enforcement agencies  which those agencies may gather (or may have
already gathered) in order to provide security and protection for the attendees at this event, even
though we will not be able to independently verify that such intelligence was gathered by those
agencies in strict compliance with the guidelines that would govern MPD’s own intelligence
gathering as restricted and governed by the Kendrick Consent Decree.  At the same time, we are also
mindful that MPD may not make requests that  those agencies conduct investigations as a surrogate
for MPD or as a way to circumvent the Consent Decree’s restrictions.  We further understand that,
even if gathered by federal governmental agencies, we would not be able to act on information
 which, on its face, demonstrates that it was collected for an inappropriate purpose. (We have no
reason to expect that such would be the case.)  Under those circumstances, we understand that
MPD would be permitted to cooperate with those federal law enforcement agencies in  providing
security for the event and its attendees. We understand that this is  a determination of the Court
based upon the matter before it and does carry precedential value for other circumstances which
have not yet been studied and passed upon by the Court. Please let us know if your understanding
 differs from ours so I can be sure I accurately advise my client.  
 
We would be happy for the Monitor to have one of its law enforcement experts present 24
hours/day during the days when we anticipate receiving the type of information anticipated above,
to be on site for discussions as issues arise or information is received; or to establish an open line of
ongoing communication of some other kind to keep you  fully apprised of the events as they unfold.
Alternatively, we could provide appropriate MPD personnel  for a debriefing by the Monitor  at the
conclusion of the event. Obviously we are open to suggestions of any other ways in which you would
like to be kept fully informed as these activities occur.
 
We further understand that while the “Lobbyguard” photo system at City Hall is to remain unused
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going forward, it was considered permissible to ask for identification for persons entering City Hall
and to continue the use of the metal detector. Again, if I am mistaken  on this point, please kindly
correct me.
 
 
Our time before His Honor in chambers was limited, and although  he did not give full consideration
to  issues which were raised concerning either the Multi-Agency Gang Unit or Crime Stoppers, we
intend to file a motion under seal dealing with those, and perhaps other, discreet issues within the
next few business days. It seems to me that   considerations involving multi-law enforcement agency
cooperation  surrounding the Multi-Agency Gang Unit raise several  issues similar to those involved
in the Court’s analysis  of MPD receipt of information from other law enforcement agencies in
connection with the September 9-11 event. Moreover, I believe there is  recognition by everyone
before the Bar in this case  that we are in an interim or transition period pending final
implementation of the policy and procedure revisions ordered by the Court and are feeling our way
along in attempting to strike a  balance to allow continuity of public safety while coming into
compliance with the Consent Decree.   For these reasons, we would respectfully request that we not
be required to shut down these two programs pending Court consideration of our soon-to-be-filed
motion on those subjects.  Thank you for your time and consideration.
 
 
Mark Glover
Office Managing Shareholder
Baker, Donelson, Bearman,
     Caldwell & Berkowitz, P.C.
165 Madison Avenue, Suite 2000
Memphis, TN  38103
Telephone:  901.577.2222
Facsimile:  901.577.0732
Email:  mglover@bakerdonelson.com
www.bakerdonelson.com
 
Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, P.C.
represents clients across the U.S. and abroad from offices
in Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, Tennessee, 
Texas and Washington, D.C.
 
 
 

NOTICE: This electronic mail transmission with any attachments may constitute an attorney-client communication, protected health
information (PHI) or other confidential information that is in fact confidential, legally protected from disclosure and/or protected by the
attorney-client privilege. If you are the intended recipient, please maintain confidentiality and be aware that forwarding this e-mail to
others may result in a waiver of these protections and privileges and regardless electronic communications may be at times illegally
accessed and viewed. If you are not the intended recipient, this e-mail is not intended for transmission to you, nor to be read, reviewed,
used, distr buted or even received by you or any other unauthorized persons. If you have received this electronic mail transmission in
error, please double delete it from your system immediately without copying, reading or disseminating it, and notify the sender by reply e-
mail, so that our address record can be corrected. Thank you very much.
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